






BOARD OF EDUCATION
MEETING

  

  

MAY 1, 2006

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147th STREET

MAY 1, 2006

6:15 P.M. PAYBAC Reception

AGENDA
Call to Order

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and
comments on agenda items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board
President before the meeting begins.

E. Routine Matters*
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – April 17, 2006
2. *Approval of Bills
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File

F. Information Items
1. Employees of the Month
2. Showcase: PAYBAC Awards
3. Superintendent’s Report
4. Board Comments/Announcement

G. Unfinished Business:

H. New Business
1. Approval of Rule 6700.6 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular

School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities
(Travel and Trips)

2. Approval of Use of Facilities Rate Schedule
3. Award Construction Bids for Ackerman Elementary
4. Administrator for Hire
5. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations, Leave(s) of Absence, and New Hires
6. Litigation (Executive Session)
7. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

2



Agenda
May 1, 2006
Page 2

8. Contract Negotiations (Executive Session)
9. Pupil Personnel Matter (Executive Session)

I. Reports
1. Enrollment Report
2. Final Enrollment Projections
3. Strategic Planning Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 8, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet at the Qwest Center on Friday, May 12, 2006

beginning at 5:00 p.m.
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 15, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 17, 2006 at 5:30 p.m. at the

Georgetowne Club.
5. Graduation for 2006 on Sunday, May 28, 2006: Millard West will be at 1:00 p.m.,

Millard North will be at 4:00 p.m., and Millard South will be at 7:00 p.m. Graduation
will be held at the Civic Auditorium

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

7. Budget Retreat on Monday, June 12, 2006 at 8 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration
Center, 5606 South 147th Street

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 19, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in
a single motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board
member.

3



.BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BUSINESS MEETING STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
7:00 P.M. 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET

MAY 1, 2006

6:15 P.M. – PAYBAC Reception

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM
A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda
items only. Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting.

*E.1. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes –
April 17, 2006. (See enclosure.)

*E.2. Motion by , seconded by , to approve the bills. (See
Enclosures.)

*E.3. Motion by , seconded by , to receive the Treasurer’s Report
and Place on File. (See enclosure.)

F.1. Employees of the Month

F.2. Showcase: PAYBAC Awards

F.3. Superintendent’s Comments

F.4. Board Comments/Announcements

F.5. Report from Student Representatives

H.1. Motion by , seconded by, _____________, to approve Rule 6700.6 – curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and
Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips). (See enclosure.)

H.2. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the fee rate schedules. (See
enclosure.)

H.3. Motion by , seconded by, ______________, that the construction contract for Ackerman
Elementary be awarded to Lueder Construction in the amount of $2,268,700 (with such amount
including the base bid only), and, that the associate superintendent for general administration be
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. (See enclosure.)

4



Administrative Memorandum
May 1, 2006
Page 2

H.4. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Administrator for Hire:
Bill Jelkins, assistant principal at Millard North High School. (See enclosure.)

H.5. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:
Resignation(s), Leave(s) of Absence, and New Hire(s). (See enclosure.)

H.6. Litigation (Executive Session)

H.7. Land Acquisition (Executive Session)

H.8. Contract Negotiations (Executive Session)

H.9. Pupil Personnel Matter (Executive Session)

I. Reports:
1. Enrollment Report
2. Final Enrollment Projections
3. Strategic Planning Update

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar
1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 8, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
2. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet at the Qwest Center on Friday, May 12, 2006 beginning at 5:00 p.m.
3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 15, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street
4. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 17, 2006 at 5:30 p.m. at the Georgetowne Club.
5. Graduation for 2006 on Sunday, May 28, 2006: Millard West will be at 1:00 p.m., Millard North will be

at 4:00 p.m., and Millard South will be at 7:00 p.m. Graduation will be held at the Civic Auditorium
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center,

5606 South 147th Street
7. Budget Retreat on Monday, June 12, 2006 at 8 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South

147th Street
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 19, 2006 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration

Center, 5606 South 147th Street

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic. Please make
sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

L. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single
motion. Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

5



Enclosure E.1.
May 1, 2006

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of
Douglas in the State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00
p.m., Monday, April 17, 2006, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

PRESENT: Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Julie Johnson, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, and
Mike Kennedy

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on, April
14, 2006; a copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was
given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt
of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. Availability of the agenda was
communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting. All
proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance
of the public.
-----------------------------------------------------------------------
AT 6:45 p.m. there was a public hearing on Policy 6750 – Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment – Student Fees.

At 7:00 p.m. Brad Burwell called the meeting to order and asked everyone to say the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Roll call was taken and all members were present.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve the Board of Education Minutes
of Monday, April 3, 2006, to approve bills, and to receive the treasurer’s report and place on file.
Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Employees of the Month for April were Sheila Bolmeier, media specialist at Cottonwood
Elementary and Roberta Heiden, receptionist at the Don Stroh Administration Center.

Showcase highlighted the Middle School All State Musicians, Gold Key Art Awards, and Winter
Sports.

Superintendent’s Report:

1. The legislature has adjourned.

Comments from the Board:

Mike Pate thanked all of those who were involved in this legislative process, especially
community members, Dr. Lutz, Ruth and Mueller, and Angelo Passarelli. Everyone was very
good about keeping the Board of Education and the public informed on this particular piece of
legislation.

Mr. Pate said he doesn’t know if it is good or bad legislation. He said he will be reading the
legislation bill, which is the law. One thing to recognize is to make sure this is legislation that
will be beneficial to out students and the entire community. This is important legislation that

6



Board of Education Minutes
April 17, 2006
Page 2

affects the entire community of Omaha and in particular the students. This is the time now for
the community to come together, the education community particularly, and not just the
education community, but the entire community of Omaha. This issue divided the community of
Omaha so much over the last ten months, that there is a lot of damage that needs to be repaired.

Mr. Pate said this all could have been avoided if Omaha Public Schools would have taken a
different path, initially. If they would have brought the educational community together to
discuss the issues that were pertinent to them at that point in time to see if this could have been
resolved without going to the legislature. He said he hopes this legislation will results in
meaningful benefits to the students and community as a whole. Anyone who has been involved
in this is glad that it over, however there is still a lot to be done to achieve a common goal.

Linda Poole reported that she attended the National School Boards Conference in Chicago, IL.

Mrs. Poole said she attended the debate on the last day of the legislative session. It was an
interesting day in being part of the process. She echoed the thoughts of Mr. Pate in that it could
have been avoided if the Omaha Public Schools would have come to Millard in the beginning to
talk. They didn’t and surprised the district on June 6, 2006. For the community’s benefit, Omaha
Public Schools has been found by the Attorney General Omaha Public Schools violated the Open
Meeting Law. She continued by saying if they had been willing to talk in the very beginning
some of this could have been handled differently.

Mrs. Poole stated the board’s number one priority was to preserve the Millard boundaries, which
has been done in LB 1024.

She thanked all of the community members, lobbyist, and the attorney firms, State Senators who
worked on this for Millard, Dr. Lutz, and Angelo. She continued by saying everyone worked
very hard and she said she was glad this part is over. Some work will still needs to be done in
trying to bring everybody together.

She did say she finds it kind of ironic that the letter from Superintendent Mackiel was delivered
to the Board Office on Friday, and the date that they would like to get together to discuss LB
1024 is on a Sunday, which she said was not very appropriate, and it is also the Sunday of
Mother’s Day. The day they picked to get everyone together was not a very good choice of days.

Jean Stothert thanked Dr. Lutz and Angelo for all of their work they did, they went way beyond
the call of duty, and it is no wonder why Millard has a high achieving and successful school
district with people like Dr. Lutz in charge. Both deserve a vacation.

Mrs. Stothert said as far as LB 1024 she is looking forward to working with all of the school
districts in Douglas and Sarpy Counties to achieve everyone’s goals and hopefully and forgo
litigation.

Julie Johnson also attended the National School Boards Association. She attended a couple of
workshops, which one was working with data and how to use it. She said she was pleased to say
that Millard is eon’s beyond what they are doing at the convention. She was hoping to learn and
extract some additional information, but Millard is doing such a great job she was not able to do

7



Board of Education Minutes
April 17, 2006
Page 3

it. She gave kudos’s to John Crawford’s entire department for how the district capitalizes on the
information , deploys it back to the buildings, and then use the information to improve ourselves.

Mike Kennedy had a couple of observations on the ‘One City One School District’. Kudos’s to
Dr. Lutz and Angelo Passarelli. He stated the community doesn’t see what goes on behind the
scenes preparing for this over the last nine months. Thought LB 1024 is the law now, but may
not be the perfect answer. He said he knows the team will work to “tweak” the bill.

Mr. Kennedy said there was a comment in the editorial section about the shrillness the suburban
superintendent’s over reacted in dealing with the OPS ‘One City One School’ issue, but he said
he doesn’t think anyone would say Keith Lutz is a Howard Dean of the school district. In fact,
he said during the past ten months he has not seen kids ever used to prove a political point. He
said the district has not made statements that were over exaggerated, and when there was a
statement made it was to put facts and numbers behind the statements, and how ‘One City One
School District’ will affect kids.

Last week Mr. Kennedy was on the Tom Becca radio show, and there were a couple of calls on
this. He made a public statement that said, “OPS should not be divided into three districts.” His
explanation was just as it was improper and wrong for OPS to take over Millard and other
districts without the consent of their community, it would be also be wrong to divide up Omaha
Public Schools without the consent of their constituency.

Mr. Kennedy said he is certainly willing to sit down with other colleagues on the other school
boards to make the Learning Community work. If Omaha Public Schools ask for support in not
having them broken up he would like the Millard residents allow Omaha Public Schools to have
the right for self determination in their matters. He said Millard has always operated in that
position, and he thinks that other school districts, no matter what has been done in the past,
operate that way.

Brad Burwell attended the National School Boards Association conference.

Mr. Burwell praised Dr. Lutz and Angelo Passarelli for their communication, because the
communication with the board and the community was exemplary. Communication is a very big
thing with the people who live in the Millard district.

Mr. Burwell stated that five or six years ago the district decided to hire Bill Mueller as the
district’s lobbyist, and it was one of the best decisions the board has made.

Mr. Burwell gave kudos to Dave Anderson and other community members who helped out, and
spent endless hour making sure that once again people knew about what the issues were and
what was going on during that time. This really shows how strong the Millard community is, and
why the people who live here want to live in the Millard School District.

Finally, Mr. Burwell wanted to recognize Governor Heineman who had the courage to step
forward, make a decision, and very quickly sign the bill into law.

A reminder to the board members to email their evaluations of Dr. Lutz to Mr. Burwell.

8



Board of Education Minutes
April 17, 2006
Page 4

Erin Sorensen, student representative from Millard West High School, Deepa Joshi, student
representative from Millard North High School, and Car Lika Estwick, student representative
from Millard South High School, gave their reports on the activities in academics and athletics
that have been taking place in the last few weeks.

Jean Stothert provided the final reading of Policy 3921 – Support Services – Risk Management –
Activity Limitations – Foreign Travel. Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Linda Poole, to
approve Policy 3921 – Support Services – Risk Management – Activity Limitations – Foreign
Travel. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Julie Johnson provided the final reading of Policy 3922 – Support Services – Risk Management
– Activity Limitations – Aircraft and Watercraft. Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean
Stothert, to approve Policy 3922 – Support Services – Risk Management – Activity Limitations –
Aircraft and Watercraft. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 3921.1 – Support Services –
Risk Management – Activity Limitations – Foreign Travel. Upon roll call vote, all members
voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson to reaffirm Policy 6750 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Student Fees. Upon roll cal vote, all members voted aye. Motion
carried.

Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 6750.1 – Curriculum,
Instruction, and Assessment – Student Fees. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion
carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve the last day of school for
students will be a full day on Friday, May 26, 2006, and the last day for staff will be on
Wednesday, May 31, 2006. Upon roll call vote, Brad Burwell, Jean Stothert, Julie Johnson,
Mike Kennedy and Linda Poole voted aye. Mike Pate voted nay. Motion carried.

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Julie Johnson, to adopt the following Cut Scores: Form G:
Cut Score=61; Form D, Cut Score=62; Form E, Cut Score=62; and Form F, Cut Score=62. Upon
roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Julie Johnson, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve field testing Harcourt Trophies
in 6th grade at Central Middle School for the school year 2006-2007. Upon roll call vote, all
members voted aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Julie Johnson, to approve the contract documents for the
Beadle Middle School construction project. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion
carried.

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve Administrator’s for Hire: Marshall
Smith, assistant principal at Central Middle School and Patricia Meeker, assistant principal at
Kiewit Middle School. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried.

9





11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Enclosure H.1.
May 1, 2006

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Extracurricular School Sponsored Group Travel and Trip
Policies

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: The rule, as amended, is being
recommended for approval after review and revision. The specific policy is:

Policy 6700, Rule 6700.6 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, Extracurricular
School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities
(Travel and Trips)

The need to establish, through board policy, minimum guidelines for building
administrators and leaders of school sponsored groups to follow when arranging travel
for school sponsor clubs, groups, and activities. This rule, as written, establishes the
following:

1. Acknowledgement of hourly driving limitations as dictated by Title 92, Nebraska
Administrative Code, Chapter 91-005.06G by those traveling as well as by those
providing the transportation.

2. Establishing the earliest time of departures to events and anticipated times of
return (arrival) for school sponsored activities.

3. Establishing procedures to following when time of departures to events and/or
anticipated times of return (arrival) are not within guidelines. Exceptions to the
guidelines must have the prior approval of the District Director of Activities.

The options would be to leave the rule as it is now written, which does not establish any
guidelines for times of departure or anticipated times of arrival.

31



RECOMMENDATIONS: First and second readings of the policies. Approve the
policies.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: Review and approval of revisions will
meet the board guideline of regular review of district policies. With adoption, timelines for travel
will establish time parameters for trips. Students will arrange for rides from the schools when
late night arrivals are anticipated. Exceptions to the parameters must be approved by the Director
of Activities. Rejection of the rule does not establish time parameters of any kind and does not
ensure that students arrange for rides when late night arrivals occur.

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Director of Activities, Craig Whaley

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

32



Category: Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
Policy: Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and

Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (NSAA)
Rule: Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and

Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips)
6700.6

Extracurricular school sponsored clubs and activities and interscholastic athletics and activities involving the
transportation of participants or spectators in school-sponsored vehicles shall be subject to the following
guidelines:

I. All trips shall originate and terminate at the school.

II. On all trips, the rules and regulations of the building and the Millard Public Schools regarding students
and student conduct shall be in effect from the time of departure until the time of return.

III. Written approval of the student's parent or guardian must be secured.

IV. A trip permit may be signed by a student's parent or guardian and placed on file for the school year.

V. The activity director principal or designee will arrange transportation for interscholastic and extracurricular
activities and athletics. Trips that are scheduled for a length of time beyond sixteen (16) hours, or which
may require student involvement or transportation beyond 12:00 midnight, or which require overnight
accommodations, shall not be approved unless the mode of transportation has a properly permitted or
licensed driver who complies with the hourly driving limitations of Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code,
Chapter 91-005.06G. Certificated staff who are providing transportation for interscholastic or
extracurricular activities or athletics shall also comply with the hourly driving limitations of Title 92,
Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 91-005.06G

A. The coach or club or activity sponsor and principal or designee will ensure that the hourly
driving limitations of Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 91-005.06G are
communicated to the provider of transportation prior to the start of the trip.

B. The coach or club or activity sponsor will ensure that the provider of transportation provides a
plan to the principal or designee prior to the start of the trip that adheres to the hourly driving
limitations of Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 91-005.06G.

C. The time of departure for the trip shall be no earlier than 6:00 a.m. on the starting day of the
trip. Exceptions to this time of departure must have the prior approval of the District Director of
Activities.

D. When the anticipated time of departure for the trip is earlier than 6:00 a.m. on the day of the
event, the trip shall be subject to the following guidelines:

1. The time of departure must have the prior approval of the District Director of Activities,

or

2. The coach or club or activity sponsor must arrange for the overnight accommodations
of the students, drivers, chaperones, and coaches or club or activity sponsors
involved on the trip for the night prior to the event.

3. The overnight accommodations must be reserved prior to the start of the trip and will
follow the overnight travel and trip guidelines.

E. The time of arrival on the return date of the trip shall be no later than 12 midnight on the day of
the event. When the anticipated time of arrival on the return date of the trip is later than 12
midnight, that time must have the prior approval of the District Director of Activities.

F. When the anticipated time of arrival for the trip is later than 12 midnight on the day of the event,
the trip shall be subject to the following guidelines:

1. The coach or club or activity sponsor will arrange for the overnight accommodations
of the students, drivers, chaperones, and coaches or club or activity sponsors
involved on the trip for the concluding night of the event. Those involved on the trip
will return to the school on the next day.

2. The overnight accommodations must be reserved prior to the start of the trip.
3. The coach or club or activity sponsor will follow the overnight travel and trip policies

and rules.

33



or

4. Upon the arrival to the school the students involved on the trip shall leave the school
by means other than walking. A certificated staff member of the school will remain in a
designated area at the school with the students involved on the trip until all of those
students have left the school.

a. The designated area at the school is subject to the approval by the principal
or designee.

b. The designated area at the school will be communicated to the
parents/guardians of the students involved on the trip prior to the trip.

c. Students on the trip are to remain in the designated area of the school until
they are released by the certificated staff member.

d. The name(s) of the person(s) other than the parents/guardians of the
students involved on the trip must be provided to the coaches or club or
activity sponsors prior to the trip.

e. The person(s) retrieving the students on the trip must come to the
designated area at the school for the trip to retrieve the students.

G. Any exceptions to these guidelines must have the prior approval of the District Director of
Activities.

VI. The coach or club or activity sponsor, in consultation with the principal or designee, may give a student
permission to use alternate transportation.

Date of Adoption: June 16, 1975

Date of Revision: August 23, 1999; March 4, 2002; May 3, 2004, May 1, 2006
Millard Public Schools

Omaha, NE

34



Enclosure H.2.
May 1, 2006

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Use of Facilities Rate Schedule

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: Approval __X__

BACKGROUND:
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: The fee rate schedules are being
recommended for approval after review and revision. The specific policy is:

Policy 1340, Rule 1340.1 Community, Use of School Facilities and Equipment

The need to adjust, through board policy, the fee rate schedules for the use of district
facilities by various users and to establish a fee rate schedule for the use of Lyle Buell
Stadium by various users:

1. The last adjustment to the fee rate schedule occurred for the 2002-2003 school
year.

2. Since the 2002-2003 school year salaries have increased and the cost of goods and
services have increased.

3. The adjustments for the rental fees (an increase of $2.50 per hour), the access fee
(an increase of $4.00 per hour), and staffing fees will help to cover the increase
cost of goods and services as well as the increased cost of overtime for personnel
that has occurred since the 2002-2003 school year.

4. There is no current fee rate schedule for the use of Lyle Buell Stadium. The
stadium and track is a specialized facility that requires proper maintenance.
Because it is a specialized facility and because manpower may be pulled from
assigned areas to prepare, operate, and clean the stadium, an access fee should be
charged during weekday use.

The options would be to leave the fee schedules as they are. As previously mentioned
there is currently no fee rate schedule for the use of Buell Stadium.

35



RECOMMENDATIONS: After all readings, approve the fee rate schedules.

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: The rates for the use of district
facilities will increase, which may cause some of our community members to look elsewhere
when facilities are needed. However, our fee rate schedules should attempt to keep pace with the
increased costs of personnel as well as goods and services.

TIME LINE: N/A

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: Director of Activities, Craig Whaley

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ________________________________________

36



Facility Request- Buell Stadium 2005-2006

Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a or 3b Priority 4 Priority 5
Stadium N/A $0 $100 per hour ($300 minimum) $140 per hour ($420 minimum) $155 per hour ($465 minimum)
Press Box+ N/A $0 $20 per hour ($60 minimum) $25 per hour ($75 minimum) $35 per hour ($105 minimum)
PA system N/A $0 $50 $70 $100
Restrooms* N/A $0 $25 per hour ($75 minimum) $35 per hour ($105 minimum) $45 per hour ($135 minimum)
Concessions** N/A $0 $40 per hour $50 per hour $60 per hour
Ticket Booth*** N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour $15 per hour
Field House N/O N/O N/O N/O N/O
Access N/A $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour
Custodian ### $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Engineer ### $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour
Grounds Person ### $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour

BUELL STADIUM AND TRACK FACILITY IS NOT AVAILABLE DURING THE SCHOOL HOURS ON SCHOOL DAYS. Priority 3, 4 and 5 users are subject to the three-
hour minimum costs. Steel cleats are never permitted on the turf surface; track spikes or tennis shoes are to be used on the track surface. Participants only are allowed on the turf and/or
track; spectators are not permitted on the track or turf at any time. Adequate security, as determined by the district, must be provided by the user to ensure that spectators do not
access the track or turf. The rental of Buell Stadium does not include any field identification or track equipment, including but not limited to yard markers, any measuring equipment,
hurdles, jump pits, starter guns, judging stands, scoreboards, and/or timing equipment. No vehicle of any type is permitted inside the stadium without written authorization from the
District Director of Activities. The rental of Buell Stadium may require the hiring of grounds personnel whom are paid for by the user as part of the facility use agreement. General
hours that Buell Stadium will be available are 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.
+ The rental of the press box does not include any equipment in the press box, including but not limited to the stadium lights, PA system, scoreboard controls, telephones and telephone
lines, internet access lines, and/or sound system. If the user requests use the stadium lights, PA system, scoreboard with control box, telephones and telephone lines, internet access
lines, and/or sound system and the district approves this request, the district may require the hiring of a custodian, scoreboard operator, and/or engineer whom are paid for by the user as
part of the facility use agreement.
* The rental of any restroom area requires the hiring of custodians whom are paid for by the user as part of the facility use agreement.
** The rental of any concession area requires the hiring of custodians whom are paid for by the user as part of the facility agreement AND does not include the use of any concession
equipment, including but not limited to refrigerators/freezers, coffee machines, hot chocolate machines, soda fountains, popcorn machines, stoves, ovens, microwave ovens, and/or
fryers without written authorization from the District Director of Activities.
*** The rental of any ticket booth does not include the use of any ticket booth equipment, including but not limited to tickets, ticket collection boxes, and/or cash boxes
Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

37



Facility Request- High Schools 2002-2003
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a, 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Auditorium N/A $0 $0 $35 per hour, $70 minimum $50 per hour, $100 minimum
Black Box N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Dressing Room N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Choir Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Practice Room N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $25 per hour, $50 minimum $40 per hour, $80 minimum
Locker Rooms N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $20 per hour, $40 minimum $30 per hour, $60 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $25 per hour, $50 minimum $40 per hour, $80 minimum
Classroom N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
Large Classroom N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Lecture Hall N/A $0 $0 $20 per hour, $40 minimum $30 per hour, $60 minimum
Computer Lab N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Pool N/A $0 $0 $25 per hour, $50 minimum $40 per hour, $80 minimum
Commons N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
Stadium N/A $0 $0 TBD TBD
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Grand Piano N/A $0 $0 $100 $200
Risers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Choral Shell N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
PA System N/A $0 $0 $40 $70
Competitive V-ball
Net

N/A $0 $0 $25 $40

PowerPoint Projector N/A $0 $0 $40 $70
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Access N/A $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour
Custodial Services ### $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour
Technology Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Light and Sound Tech N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Student L/S Staff N/A $12 per hour $12 per hour $12 per hour $12 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour

Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

38



Facility Request- High Schools 2006-2007
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a, 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Auditorium N/A $0 $0 $37.50 per hour, $75 minimum $52.50 per hour, $105 minimum
Black Box N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Dressing Room N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Choir Room N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Practice Room N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $27.50 per hour, $55 minimum $42.50 per hour, $85 minimum
Locker Rooms N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum $32.50 per hour, $65 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $27.55 per hour, $55 minimum $42.50 per hour, $85 minimum
Classroom N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Large Classroom N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Lecture Hall N/A $0 $0 $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum $32.50 per hour, $65 minimum
Computer Lab N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Pool N/A $0 $0 $27.50 per hour, $55 minimum $42.50 per hour, $85 minimum
Commons N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Stadium N/A $0 $0 TBD TBD
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Grand Piano N/A $0 $0 $100 $200
Risers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Choral Shell N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
PA System N/A $0 $0 $40 $70
Competitive V-ball
Net

N/A $0 $0 $25 $40

PowerPoint Projector N/A $0 $0 $40 $70
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Access N/A $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour
Custodial Services ### $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Technology Staff N/A $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour
Light and Sound Tech N/A $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour $25 per hour
Student L/S Staff N/A $15 per hour $15 per hour $15 per hour $15 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour

Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

39



Facility Request- Middle Schools 2002-2003
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a or 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Locker Rooms N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum $22.50 per hour, $45 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Computer Lab N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Conference Room N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Regular Classroom N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Media Center N/O $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Commons N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Access N/A $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour
Custodial Services ### $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour
Technical Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour
Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

Facility Request- Middle Schools 2006-2007
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a or 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $20 per hour, $40 minimum $25 per hour, $50 minimum
Locker Rooms N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $20 per hour, $40 minimum $25 per hour, $50 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Computer Lab N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Conference Room N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Regular Classroom N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Media Center N/O $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Commons N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Access N/A $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour
Custodial Services ### $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Technical Staff N/A $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

40



Facility Request- Elementary Schools 2002-2003
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a or 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $20 per hour, $40 minimum
Classroom N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Media Center N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Conference Room N/A $0 $0 $7.50 per hour, $15 minimum $10 per hour, $20 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
Computer Lab N/O $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $15 per hour, $30 minimum
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Access N/A $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour $23 per hour
Custodial Services ### $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour
Technical Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour $19 per hour

Fees may be waived at the discretion of the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

Facility Request- Elementary Schools 2006-2007
Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3a or 3b Priority 4 Priority 5

Gymnasium N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $55 minimum
Cafeteria/MP Room N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $55 minimum
Kitchen N/A $0 $0 $15 per hour, $30 minimum $22.50 per hour, $55 minimum
Classroom N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Media Center N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Conference Room N/A $0 $0 $10 per hour, $20 minimum $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum
Music Room N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Computer Lab N/O $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
Staff Lounge N/A $0 $0 $12.50 per hour, $25 minimum $17.50 per hour, $35 minimum
TV/VCR N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Overhead Projector N/A $0 $0 $15 $25
Microphones/Speakers N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Piano N/A $0 $0 $25 $40
Access N/A $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour $27 per hour
Custodial Services ### $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour
Technical Staff N/A $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour $35 per hour
Kitchen Staff N/A $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour $22 per hour

Fees may be waived at the District Director of Activities.
### Overtime may be charged to schools for certain and specific circumstances.

41



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Ackerman Elementary Construction Contract

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: General Administration

TITLE & BRIEF
DESCRIPTION: Award of Ackerman Elementary Construction Contract – The receipt of bids and

the awarding of the Summer 2006 construction project at Ackerman Elementary
School.

ACTION DESIRED: Approval x Discussion Information Only .

BACKGROUND: This project is one that was provided for in the 2005 bond issue. Information with
regard to the contents of the project was presented at previous board meeting.

Bids for the project were received on April 18th. A copy of the bid tab is attached
(along with the cover letter from the Architect).

The base bid was $6,254 below the construction budget. Therefore, the
recommendation is to award the contract for the bas bid only.

OPTIONS AND
ALTERNATIVES: The District could accept some of the alternates, but it would need to dip into the

contingency account if it did so. If such action were to be considered, the project
committee would suggest that the highest priority would be to provide additional
natural lighting to the building (which has no windows on the north) by accepting
the alternates related to the corridor and classroom skylights and the re-roofing that
would accompany this (i.e., Alternates 1b, 5a, 5b, and 5c = $256,696 over
budget). Consideration might also be given to the carpet upgrade (i.e., Alternate 4
= $5,246 over budget).

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the construction contract for Ackerman Elementary be
awarded to Lueder Construction in the amount of $2,268,700 (with such amount
including the base bid only), and, that the associate superintendent for general
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related
to such project.

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a

TIMELINE: Immediate.

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration); Don Mohlman
(MRI); Ed Rockwell (General Manager for Support Services); and Bill Cramer
(TSA Architect)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL: __________________________

42



43



44



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Assistant Principal, North High School

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: The position was advertised in Millard’s job postings and Careerlink.
Sixteen applications were received (six from within the district and ten
from outside the district.) The applications were reviewed by Dr.
Eltiste and Dr. Werkheiser. Five applicants from within the district and
one from outside the district were selected to interview for the position.
The interview teams included Dr. Kirby Eltiste, Nancy Nelson, Lori
Bartels, Lori Jasa, Kraig Lofquist, Sharon Comisar-Langdon, Dr.
George Conrad, Betsy Belmont(Parent), Larry Wooster(Parent), Nick
Schroeder(Student), Rhonda Betzold(Teacher), Mindy Reed(Teacher),
Vince Lenz(Teacher), Susan Marlatt, Greg Tiemann, Dr. Rick
Werkheiser. I am recommending the following individual for the
position.

George (Bill) Jelkin Recommended for North High School Assistant Principal position. Bill
is currently the Dean of Students at Bellevue East High School. He has
been at Bellevue East since 1997 as coach, classroom teacher, Social
Studies Department Head, Career Coordinator. He was also a teacher
at Alliance Middle School from 1993 to 1997.

Education: Bachelor’s Degree from University of Nebraska Kearney in 1992.
Master’s Degree in Instructional Technology from Peru in 2001 and a
Master’s Degree in Educational Administration from the University of
Nebraska Omaha in 2003.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PERSON RECOMMENDING: Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:

45



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

ACTION DESIRED: Approval

BACKGROUND: Personnel items: (1) Hires, (2) Leave of Absence, and (3)
Resignations.

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA

RECOMMENDATION: Approval

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION
OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Dr. Kirby Eltiste

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: __________________________________

46



May 1, 2006

RESIGNATIONS

Recommend: the following resignations be accepted:

1. David Park – Preschool teacher at Sandoz Elementary School. He is resigning due to personal
reasons. Resignation is effective immediately.

2. Kate Savas – Special Education Multi-Handicapped teacher at South High School. She is
resigning due to job dissatisfaction. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

3. Theresa Huss – Special Education Resource teacher at North High School. She is resigning due to
a job outside education. Resignation is effective immediately.

4. Jeff Graver – Industrial Tech teacher at North High School. He is resigning for personal reasons.
Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

5. Lauren Pieper – Speech Pathologist at Wheeler Elementary School. She is resigning to take
another job in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

6. Rebecca Behrendt – Language Arts teacher at Russell Middle School. She is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

7. Benjamin Kovacs – Third grade CADRE teacher at Reeder Elementary School. He is resigning
due to relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

8. Lori Swallow – Kindergarten teacher at Morton Elementary School. She is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

9. Susan Passarelli – Media Specialist at Neihardt Elementary School. She is resigning due to
retirement. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

10. Kristi Amos – Special Education Preschool teacher at Sandoz Elementary School. She is
resigning for personal reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

11. Teresa Meyers – Multi Cat Special Education teacher at Beadle Middle School. She is resigning
due to relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

12. Stephanie Hirsch – School Psychologist for Millard Public Schools. She is resigning due to
personal reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

13. Renee Masching – READ teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. She is resigning due to personal
reasons. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

14. Allynda Davis – Speech Pathologist at Central Middle School. She is resigning due to relocation.
Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

15. Jericia French – Fourth grade teacher at Willowdale Elementary School. She is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

16. Karisa Riesselman – First grade teacher at Norris Elementary School. She is resigning to take
another job in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

47



17. Thomas Michalek – Vocal music teacher at Rohwer Elementary School. He is resigning due to
relocation. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

18. Tony Vincent – Technology Leader at Willowdale Elementary School. He is resigning to take
another job in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

19. Anne Kalkowski – Media Specialist at North Middle School. She is resigning to take another job
in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06 school year.

20. Loretta Soto – Special Education Behavior Disorder teacher at Central Middle School. She is
resigning to take another job in education. Resignation is effective at the end of the 2005/06
school year.

48



May 1, 2006

LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS

Recommend: the following extended leave without pay requests be approved:

1. Joan Murray – Math teacher at North High School. Requesting a Leave of Absence for
the 2006/07 school year for family reasons.

49



May 1, 2006

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE

Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2006/07 school year:

1. Emily Neneman – BA – Creighton University. Third grade teacher at Aldrich Elementary
School.

2. Susan Fleissner – BA+36 – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. School Psychologist (Short-Term)
for Millard Public Schools.

3. Heidi Neumann – Ed Specialist – University of Missouri at Columbia. Media Specialist at Morton
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Omaha Public Schools (2003/2006); Hopkins, MN
(1994/2002).

4. Nicole Makens – BA+9 – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Vocal music teacher at Holling
Heights Elementary School. Previous Exp: Woodbine, IA (2004/2006).

5. Troy Malone – BA – Wayne State College. PE teacher at Norris Elementary School.

6. Diane Beninato – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Fifth grade teacher at Hitchcock
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Wahoo, NE (2003/2006).

7. Camella McCoy – BA – Grace University. Language Arts teacher at North High School.

8. Andrew Holz – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Language Arts teacher at Andersen
Middle School.

9. Stephanie Schaffer – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Foreign Language teacher with
building to be determined.

10. Larissa Knudson – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Foreign Language teacher at North
High School. Previous Exp: Papillion/LaVista (2004/2006).

11. Luke Olson – BA – Hastings College. Math teacher at North High School.

12. Jared Draeger – BA – Doane College. Math teacher at North High School

13. Michael Catron – BA – Nebraska Wesleyan University. Language Arts teacher at West High
School. Previous Exp: Japan (1999/2001).

14. Treavor Wragge – BA+18 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. PE teacher at South High School.
Previous Exp: Council Bluffs, IA (2005/2006).

15. Lachelle Fiscus – MA – University of Nebraska at Omaha. School Psychologist (Short-Term)
with building to be determined.

16. Lacey Retzlaff – BA – Doane College. First grade teacher at Holling Heights Elementary School.

50



The following individuals were employed with Millard Public Schools during the 2005/06 school
year on a short term contract. They are now being offered a regular contract for the 2006/07
school year.

1. Bethany Herd – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln. Kindergarten teacher at Rockwell
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (2004/2006).

2. Deb Morgan – BA+2 – College of St. Mary. Kindergarten teacher at Neihardt Elementary School.
Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (2004/2006).

3. Marilyn Opitz – BA+21 – University of Nebraska at Omaha. Kindergarten teacher at Neihardt
Elementary School. Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (1977/1982 & 2005/2006); Omaha
Public Schools (2001/2003).

4. Danae Albers – MA – Doane College. Kindergarten teacher at Neihardt Elementary School.
Previous Exp: Millard Public Schools (2005/2006).

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Strategic Planning Progress Report

MEETING DATE: May 1, 2006

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Strategic Planning Quarterly Progress Report

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL DISCUSSION INFORMATION ONLY XX

BACKGROUND:

Please find the attached action plan progress reports for action plans that were developed or continued from our
Strategic Plan approved in March 2004.

There are progress reports for 42 action plans that are currently underway or completed. They include plans in
each strategy.

The new action team for strategy 7 has been meeting and is closing in on new action plans. The work of this
committee will come to our second planning session that will take place in the Fall of 2006.

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

RECOMMENDATION:

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: To support accomplishment of the district mission and objectives.

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:

TIMELINE:

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

62



Strategy Specific Result Assigned To 2004-2005 2005-2006

1-1 Financial support to become world-class Keith Lutz X X
1-2 Community Ambassadors Keith Lutz, Ken Fossen X X
1-3 Corporate sponsorship
1-4 MPS Foundation

2-1 Concept Elements John Crawford Completed-05
2-2 Facilities for MS & HS at-risk Keith Lutz, Ken Fossen X X

2-3 New buildings and/or additions - SW growth Ken Fossen X X
2-4 Redesign boundaries plan
2-5 Space for technology Keith Lutz, Ken Fossen Completed-05
2-6 Options for facility usage
2-7 Space for warehouse, etc.

3-1 Develop alternative graduation paths Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05
3-2 Involve students, parents, & staff in ILPs Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05
3-3 Optional senior project
3-4 Unify goal-setting at MS Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05
3-5 Unify approach to MS conferences Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter Completed-05

3-6 Goal-setting at elementary level Completed-06

4-1 Process to analyze & distribute student data John Crawford X X
4-2 Training for certified staff to interpret data
4-3 Analyze data & improve student performance

Financial Challenges

Building Utilization/Facility Needs

Personal Goal Setting

Millard Public Schools
Status of All Strategic Action Plans as of January 2006

Analyze Student Data

63



Strategy Specific Result Assigned To 2004-2005 2005-2006

5-1 Increase SAT/ACT performance Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-2 Increase communition about SAT/ACT Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-3 Plan for SAT/ACT preparation - teachers Judy Porter X
5-4 Create AP culture Judy Porter Completed-05
5-5 Plan to support AP teachers Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-6 Align curriculum with College Board Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-7 Increase participation in AP exams Judy Porter Completed-06
5-8 Increase participation in IBP Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-9 Vertical articulation for IBP and MYP Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05

5-10 Establish Middle Years IBP Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter X Completed-05
5-11 Establish Primary Years IBP Carol Newton, Angelo Passarelli, Susie Melliger X
5-12 Increase # of nat'l & internat'l opportunities Martha Bruckner, Judy Porter, Carol Newton X

6-1 Support new students and families Martha Bruckner, Mandy Johnson Completed-05
6-2 Determine academic needs for new students Martha Bruckner, Mandy Johnson X Completed-05
6-3 Transition to elementary - District Carol Newton Completed-06
6-4 Transition to elementary - Dist & Comm Carol Newton Completed-06
6-5 Outreach materials - parental awareness Carol Newton Completed-06

6-6 Orientation & support for 5-6 transition Martha Bruckner, Bert Deremer X X
6-7 Communication, 5-6 transition Martha Bruckner, Bert Deremer, Lori Jasa X X
6-8 Smaller learning communities - HS Martha Bruckner, Char Riewer X Completed-05
6-9 Communication, 8-9 transition Judy Porter Completed-05

6-10 HS-post-secondary transition

Transitions

National and International Measures

64



Strategy Specific Result Assigned To 2004-2005 2005-2006

7-1 Communication - MPS & comm agencies Kirby Eltiste, Kraig Lofquist Completed-05
7-2 Increase use of schools as info centers
7-3 Improve K-12 drug abuse prevention Kirby Eltiste, Kraig Lofquist X Completed-05
7-4 Harassment, bullying & violence prevention Kirby Eltiste, Kraig Lofquist X Completed-05
7-5 Promote positive student behavior X
7-6 Identify suicidal students and intervene Kirby Eltiste, Kraig Lofquist Completed-05
7-7 Educate parents/staff re mental health issues Completed-06

8-1 Alternative learning - elementary
8-2 Alternative school-year calendar options Angelo Passarelli X X
8-3 Alternative learning - MS Martha Bruckner, Heather Phipps X Completed-05
8-4 Alernative on-campus learning - HS Martha Bruckner X X
8-5 Alternative off-campus learning - HS
8-6 Plans to create a small HS Keith Lutz X

Negative Social Issues

Non-Traditional Learning

65



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ____1____ Action Plan: ____1____

Person Responsible: Keith Lutz

Action Plan Objective: Determine the financial support necessary to achieve
world-class status.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway XX Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

We have been working to establish critical links and networks to world-class schools.
1. We joined National Council of Educational Research and Technology (NCERT)

that represents 65 premier school districts across the country.
2. We joined the Suburban School Superintendent’s group. This organization

includes 100 prestigious schools. Schools are asked to join by invitation only.
3. We have joined a national benchmarking group from Olatha, Kansas that includes

one high performing district from each state. We represent Nebraska and will
meet in October of 2006.

4. A Millard Team is discussing the ideas from the World Class Institute with a plan
to see how those ideas might be relevant to our district.

66



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ____1____ Action Plan: ____2____

Person Responsible: Keith Lutz

Action Plan Objective: Develop a team of Community Ambassadors who would
educate the Millard Public Schools community on what constitutes a “world-class”
education and the financial challenges that need to be addressed to reach that status.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway XX Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

We have been studying all current advisory groups for potential membership as
ambassadors. This includes groups such as: PTO or PTA, District Advisory
Committees, Legislative Corps, and local and state leaders.

We successfully trained ambassadors for our bond issues with very positive results.

We recruited over 800 community members to serve on our Legislative Corps this year
and support our legislative agenda.

We recruited over 400 Key Communicators (Community Ambassadors) to support our
communications and legislative agenda.

67



ACTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

Strategy 2 Action Plan ___1_ _

Person Responsible: John Crawford

Action Plan Objective: Submit concept elements (revised as of 10/28/03) to the Board of
Education for approval.

Action Plan Status: Completed x Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what will
you do in the future):

68



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ____2____ Action Plan: ____2____

Person Responsible: Keith Lutz

Action Plan Objective: Acquire appropriate facilities for the alternative middle and
high school at-risk programs to accommodate District needs.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway XX Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

We have gained additional space for the middle school alternative program in the Central
Middle School annex. This space was freed up this summer by moving the Psychologists
into the Technology space at Connectivity Solutions Manufacturing (formerly AVAYA).

The successful bond issue will provide space for the 9-12 grade alternative school.
Planning for that program is underway and the school will be ready in 2008.

We now have an offer to consider for a site in Sarpy County for the small alternative high
school.

69



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 2 Action Plan: 3_

Person Responsible: Ken Fossen

Action Plan Objective: Build new buildings and/or additions to meet the growth
needs in the southwest portion of the District.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 The construction of Reeder Elementary School (192nd and Chandler Streets) has
been completed. The school opened in August, 2005.

 The condemnation process for the land for Elementary #24 (near 192nd and F
Streets) is being completed and the building is being built. It is a site-adopt of the
two-story design used for Rohwer, Wheeler, and Reeder Elementary Schools.

 The land for Elementary #25 (near 168th and Giles Road) has been purchased.
Some rough grading is being done on the site by the subdivision developer.
Design work has been completed. The project will be bid in 2007. It is scheduled
to open in the fall of 2008. It will be a new one-story design.

 The design work for the addition to Beadle Middle School has been completed.
The project will commence this summer.

 The additions to the three high schools have been designed and bid. Construction
commences on all projects this summer.

70



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___3____ Action Plan: ___1____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement a system through which students,
parents, and teachers are involved in designing individual learning plans for high school
students.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

The Implementation Team created four specifically designed diploma paths:
Liberal Arts Diploma Commended
Liberal Arts Diploma Distinguished
Specialty Diploma Commended
Specialty Diploma Distinguished.

On November 21, 2005, a report was made to the board about alternate diploma paths.
Board member response was very positive. The handbooks for 06-07 incorporate the
diploma paths, effective for the Class of 2008 (current juniors).

71



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___3____ Action Plan: ___2____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement a system through which students,
parents, and teachers are involved in designing individual learning plans for high school
students.

Action Plan Status: Completed x Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

High school certificated staff and administrators attended four hours of staff development
pertaining to the Personal Learning Plan during June and August. Key ideas were:
Rationale and background information on the PLP,
Activity ideas that advisors could use to build relationships among their advisees and
rationale for such activities,
The dual role that staff would play as the advisor and the teacher,
Ideas for reading and math instructional strategies, and
The revision of goals using the SMART model (Specific and Strategic, Measurable,
Attainable, Results-oriented, and Time-bound)

An opportunity for advisors and their advisees to take the Strengthfinders instrument and
work with the Gallup organization on maximizing strengths was accepted by 41 advisors.

Millard students, staff, and parents were filmed for the creation of a video that was shown
to parents during the Advisement time of each high school’s Open House.

The plans were implemented in semester 1. Representatives from each school are
overseeing the implementation, and they continue to talk about ways to improve the
process. Gallup will assist in evaluation of Year 1 at the end of the year.

A one-day workshop with high school advisors is planned for May 30 and May 31, 2006.
Plans are underway to connect the PLP – teacher version – with Infinite Campus, and to
have the student version web based for ease of access.

72



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___3_____ Action Plan: ____4____

Person Responsible: Dr. Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Unify current goal setting models at the middle school level

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

The first year activities have been developed and shared with middle school teachers and
administrators. Goal setting has started in earnest in the middle schools. Planners are in
place, and planned activities have occurred. Specific goal setting activities are planned
for quarter 3 and 4.

The committee met to write lessons for second semester and for transition (Summer)
goals. These have been completed and are moving toward the buildings.
The committee also is working on year 2 goal setting materials. These have been
developed and the material is close to being distributed to buildings.

73



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___3_____ Action Plan: ___5_____

Person Responsible: Dr. Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Implement a unified approach to middle school conferences that
facilitates goal setting

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

We have evaluated existing Middle School models for PTC
We have selected model to be used, including frequency, and participants’ roles
We are working on staff development
We are working with middle schools to implement goal setting conferences.
We will meet to review process and refine/update
The committee has met and sent information to buildings to facilitate the goal setting
portion of second conferences.

Goal setting conferences occurred at all buildings during first semester and are planned
for second semester, also.

74



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: __3______ Action Plan: ___6_____

Person Responsible: Carol Newton April 24, 2006

Action Plan Objective:
Strat 3 – We will design a cost-effective and manageable system to help each student
participate in setting and achieving challenging educational goals tailored to his or her
abilities, interests, and aspirations.

A.P. 6 - Develop and implement a goal-setting program at the elementary level.

Action Plan Status: Completed X

Team: Chairs – Jennifer Skibinski & Dawn Sellin
Kevin Chick Susie Wooster Shelley McCabe
Jerri Wesley Nancy Thornblad Christi Buell
Heidi Penke Nancy Anderson Char Bruggeman
Jodi Fawcett Jan Frank Carrie Novotny-Buss
Rhonda Bishop Beth Kohler Cynthia Niebur
Laurie Fitzpatrick

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

The Strategy 3 Action Plan 6 Committee developed an elementary goal-setting program,
after evaluating existing goal setting models at the elementary school level. The Co-Chairs
met with Tracy Logan, Co-Chairman of the Development of Strategy #3, to discuss the
vision and direction for Action Plan #6. Co-chairs then met with Joan Wilson, Chairman of
Action Plan #4, to discuss the implementation of goal setting at the middle school level.
The committee then combined the SMART goal program and Millard’s existing counseling
curriculum to form the elementary goal-setting curriculum.

Two sub-committees, K-2 and 3-5, developed SMART goal-setting lessons for elementary
teachers. These lessons focus on academic and life skill goal setting and achievement. The
lessons will teach students the process of goal-setting and the significance of achieving
goals. The goal-setting curriculum consists of one to two quarterly lessons for each grade
level. The lessons align with the middle school goal setting student expectations. Teachers
will participate in staff development at the building level in late August. Quarterly, students
will establish academic and life skill goals with the guidance of their teacher. Student,
teacher and parent(s) will evaluate the achievement of these goals. At both the primary and
intermediate levels, students will record their goal in a booklet that will be shared with
parents at parent-teacher conferences. This booklet will progress with the student each year
during their elementary experience and be reviewed by their future teachers. The classroom
poster developed for middle school classrooms will be used at the elementary level.

75



ACTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

Strategy 4 Action Plan ___1_ _

Person Responsible: John Crawford

Action Plan Objective: Design and implement a consistent process to collect, analyze, and
disseminate student performance data for certified staff.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway x Not Started ___

BRIEF SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

Plan 4-1 is near completion. The ESU SIMS cutoff was midnight on December 22,
2005. All teachers in the district were trained on January 4, 2006. Follow-up training is
scheduled for the spring semester, on more advanced functions such as Personal Learning
Plans, data analysis, ad hoc reporting, etc. Building principals, central office staff, and
specialists have all received initial training. Step 6 of plan 4-1 (regarding the completion of
building plans for disseminating data to staff) is the remaining implementation step.

76



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 5 Action Plan: 5.1

Person Responsible: Judy Porter/Linda Shirck

Action Plan Objective:

5.1 Increase student performance on ACT/SAT exams.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE

Completed
 21 students completed the new summer school ACT/SAT Prep course.
 PLAN/ACT results are included in student Personal Learning Plans, as a goal setting

and course planning tool.
 Students were informed of new on-line “Official ACT” Prep course and other ACT

web site resources.
 Information added to the curriculum handbook emphasizes the correlations among

core curriculum, ACT scores and college preparedness.

Underway
 Investigate the feasibility of adding elective ACT/SAT prep courses in the area of

math, similar to College Prep Grammar course.
 Track PLAN/ACT test scores of students who completed ACT Prep summer school

course, College Prep Grammar and other test prep opportunities.
 Analyze PLAN/ACT Linkage Reports. (These reports link data on students who take

the PLAN and then the ACT; highlights strengths and pinpoints areas of possible
improvement in student academic preparation.)

 Plan to expand 2006 summer school ACT/SAT Prep course to 2 sections.
 Purchase ACTive Prep software for use by students in guidance centers when update

becomes available.
 The course length of College Prep Grammar will be reviewed when Language Arts

enters the curriculum phase cycle, so that all schools offer the same format.

77



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 5 Action Plan: 5.2

Person Responsible: Judy Porter/Linda Shirck

Action Plan Objective:

5.2 Increase communication about ACT/SAT exams.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE

 Action plan team’s recommendations were communicated to all high school
counselors. Each school developed specific plans for implementing
recommendations.

 Brochure “College Entrance Exams: What do I need to know about the ACT and
SAT?” was produced and distributed to sophomores, juniors, and their parents.

 Core course equivalent form was added to each high school websites, to assist
students with more accurate on-line test registration, and included in ACT registration
packets.

 Testing information was added to the 2006-07 Curriculum Handbook, identifying
core course equivalents and emphasizing the importance of completing core
curriculum.

 Counselors provided information to parents and students about commercially
available test prep resources.

78



Action Plan Progress Report
April 21, 2006

Strategy: 5 Action Plan: 5.3

Person Responsible: Judy Porter/Linda Shirck

Action Plan Objective:

5.3 Develop a systematic plan to train teachers to help prepare students for ACT/SAT
exams.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE

 Determined which PLAN/ACT/SAT score reports buildings currently receive.
 Reviewed available score report options that have implications for curriculum

alignment and this Action Plan.
 Professional Learning Communities analyze test data.
 Implementation Team of teachers identified specific steps needed to implement

the Action Plan.

At the recommendation of the implementation team, we will…

 Purchase College Readiness Standards and a district site license for ACT On-Line
Prep.

 Post PLAN test data on Infinite Campus for advisor access.
 C&I’s and MEP Facilitators will analyze test data and make curriculum

connections (June 5).
 Develop test prep classroom support material.
 Develop a literacy staff development plan for implementation in 2007-08

79



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5__ Action Plan: ____4____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Create an Advanced Placement culture.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 Parent meetings, brochures, newsletter communications are in place to promote AP and testing
 A pamphlet and booklet have been created and distributed to buildings noting the benefits of

taking and performing well on AP exams (see attached AP exam plan)
 Communication via meetings and conversations have occurred with counselors and advisors about

the advantages of taking AP courses and exams – all college bound students are encouraged to
take at least one AP class

 AP nights for parents and students are planned and have occurred – this is a regular yearly process
 We maintain membership for the district with the College Board.
 A link to the College Board website is currently on the web pages of all three high schools and the

district website.
 Newsletter mailings and written information and pamphlets are shared with parents and students.

80



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5__ Action Plan: ____5____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Develop systematic plan for training and support of Advanced
Placement (A.P.®) teachers.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 By the end of the 2005-06 summer, all AP teachers will have attended a 5-day training session in
their subject area. An ongoing plan for regular training has been developed and will be
implemented. Buildings will continue to provide course guide information, retired tests, etc. to
assist teachers in preparing students for the AP exams.

 Buildings will continue to provide course guide information, retired, tests, etc. to assist teachers in
preparing students for the AP exams.

 AP buddies have been assigned to new AP teachers. Communications among AP teachers is
enhanced via Professional Learning Communities.

 Further opportunities for collaboration will be fostered.

81



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5__ Action Plan: ____6____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Ensure AP® curriculum alignment across all levels with College
Board standards for advanced placement (AP®) exams.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 Buildings will continue to provide course guide information, retired tests, etc. to
assist teachers in preparing students for the AP exams.

 Vertical teams are beginning to work during the second semester of 2005-06 in
the areas of language arts, math and social studies with other subject areas to
follow.

 As we work to implement curriculums through the MEP process, we collaborate
with College Board representative, use College Board recommended materials
and sources, and invite consultation when we are writing curriculum for AP
courses.

 Representative AP teachers are beginning collaboration to develop a successful
instructional template to assist student in preparation for the AP exams.

 Student exam scores are examined; results and strategies for improvement are
shared with teachers. During the summer of 2005, a class for Pre AP and AP
Calculus prep and College Prep Grammar Usage were offered. We will continue
to offer these summer school course opportunities for students.

 An AP English Language and Composition course was added as a course
offering at the high schools for the 2006-07 school year. This allows us to offer a
least two courses per core subject area.

 A district administrator has been assigned to coordinate AP testing and fulfill man
of the aspects of a recommended job assignment.

82



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: _____5___ Action Plan: ____7____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Increase student participation in and performance on Advanced
Placement (AP®) exams.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 A plan for increasing student incentives to take AP® exams has been created (see
enclosed plan)

 District guidelines have been created for AP teachers to use in helping to prepare
students for testing.

 Review sessions for AP exams have been developed, scheduled and are being
implemented.

 The AP exam coordinator is addressing test taking needs – materials and
equipment will be provided as needed.

 Strategies for facilitating student testing are in place and will continue to be
implemented.

83



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5_____ Action Plan: ___8____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Increase the number of students participating in IB Programmes

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 Parent information sessions have been implemented to provide information
about the IB program, testimonials from parents, students, and information
about university recognition of IB coursework and diploma, etc.

 Additional opportunities to meet with IB students (and students preparing for
IB) have been initiated. IB lunches twice a month with each grade level 10-12,
9th on Monday during PLC time. Topics for discussion have included IB
processes, CAS, Extended Essay, grades, study skills, organization, time
management, learning styles, etc.

 Further efforts to include former IB students in a role for recruitment have
been and are occurring including email availability. IB students have
presented at parent nights for both the IB diploma programme and the MYP.

 Two SL courses were added in 2004-05 – Theatre Arts SL and Computer
Science SL – these opportunities were added to existing courses. Chemistry
SL was added in 2005-06.

 Discussion and promotion to UNL has helped to cause the university to
develop recognition for work in IB this year. UNO indicated that they will
honor UNL’s policy. Information on university recognition exists on the IBO
website. Our participation with Midwest IB Schools has facilitated contacts
with colleges/universities in a 5 state area to promote recognition of IB work.

84



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ____5____ Action Plan: ____9____

Person Responsible: Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Ensure vertical articulation of all International Baccalaureate
(IB) and pre International Baccalaureate programs.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 The initial offering of a Middle Years Programme (MYP) is occurring at North
Middle School in grade 6 in 2005-06. Grades 7 and 9 will be added in 2005-06.
The offerings will continue to expand for MYP through grade 10 at North High
School. This method of instruction will help interested students to be well
prepared for the diploma programme.

 Currently teacher training is occurring for design and implementation of IB
methods of instruction using identified Areas of Interaction.

 A Primary Years Programme (PYP) is being planned for the future.
 Critical thinking and inquiry-based instruction a key components of instructional

methodology in all IB programs.
 Results of student testing are always reviewed and adjustments to instruction

occur when deemed appropriate. Diploma teachers receive specific feedback from
IB on the results of their students after testing. Adjustments in instruction or areas
of emphasis occur if deemed necessary. Additional materials or training are
purchased for teachers needing more information, materials, or training.

 There is a continual effort to remain current with information and resources.
 100% of our students earned IB diplomas in 2004-05.
 Teachers are ready to go to high level training.
 All IB students are encouraged to participate in extra-curricular activities. These

activities contribute to meeting the requirements in the diploma program list.
 Finding collaboration time for teachers continues to be emphasized. Work in

finding time and methods to assure collaboration will continue.

85



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5____ Action Plan: ___10_____

Person Responsible: Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: Establish a Middle Years Programme for International
Baccalaureate

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 Materials and publications have been obtained and are being used from the International
Baccalaureate Organization (IBO)

 Staff members have been trained at appropriate levels. Training will continue as appropriate.
 A three-year plan has been developed and is being implemented in accordance with IBO

guidelines.
 Application A has been accepted by the IB organization.
 Application B will be submitted by May 1, 2005.
 Selected IB MYP coordinators for NMS and NHS have been identified and are working to

coordinate programme implementation. Coordinators have attended appropriate training and meet
monthly.

 Teachers have developed instructional strategies and methods in accordance with IBO guidelines
for courses implemented and planned.

 The first MYP class began at NMS in the 05-06 school year with 71 6th grade students. Teacher
training has begun and continues.

 In 2006-07, MYP course offerings will be available to students in grades 6, 7 and 9. In 2007-08,
MYP course offerings will be available to students in grades 6-10.

 Brochures and materials are in place to provide information for parents.
 Communications with elementary and middle schools about MYP opportunities are ongoing –

meetings and mailings occur as appropriate.
 Information about MYP is sent to parents of fifth or eighth grade students yearly.
 Parent feedback will be sought on an ongoing basis to improve our communication and delivery

process.
 An IB consultant has been assigned to our MYP programme to provide input, feedback and advice

to assist in the successful completion on the IB approval process. We have hosted a visit by the
consultant.

 A site visit is planned for 2006-07.

86



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5_____ Action Plan: ___11_____

Person Responsible: Angelo Passarelli, Carol Newton, Susie Melliger, Sharon Epstein

Action Plan Objective: Establish a Primary Years International Baccalaureate
Organization (IBO) Programme (PYP) in at least one Millard Elementary School.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 Publications have been obtained for all Aldrich teachers.
 Twenty-one staff members at Aldrich have attended Level 1 Training. The training workshops

that staff attended were in North Carolina, Texas, California and New York. One staff member
from Educational Services attended training, also.

 Aldrich spent one year exploring the feasibility of implementing the PYP prior to training staff
members. This exploration included a parent survey in addition to gaining consensus among staff.

 The 2005-2006 school year has been devoted to training, further research, completing Application
Part A, informing new families of the PYP philosophy and our plans to implement the program.

 Emphasis on the PYP attitudes has started in all classrooms.
 We have visited three sites (West Des Moines, Blue Valley in Kansas City, and Lothrop Magnet

in OPS) to observe their Spanish programs.
 Recruitment of Spanish teacher candidates resulted in the hiring of a full-time Spanish teacher for

the 2006-2007 school year and beyond.
 Nine staff members went to Colorado Springs to visit an IB school during Spring Break.
 Vertical planning has taken place among all grade levels to begin the development of our PYP

Program of Inquiry.
 Teachers have been writing unit planners for social studies.
 A staff member from Educational Services has joined us in working with grade level teams on the

development of the unit planners.
 We have hired a consultant from Canada to work with staff on May 31 and June 1 to further our

progress on our Program of Inquiry and write unit planners for science.
 All teachers are participating in a book study of The Art of Inquiry, by Nancy E. Cecil.
 During the summer we will complete our scope and sequence for our Spanish program and will

write units to support our identified outcomes.
 The 2006-2007 school year will mark the start of our implementation of the PYP unit planners that

have been completed.
 Three more planners and plans for the 5th grade exposition will be developed.
 Rubrics will be designed for each assessment in each PYP planner at each grade level.
 Student self-assessment of progress toward living the PYP attitudes will be shared with parents.
 Continued parent education sessions will take place during the 2006-2007 school year and beyond.

87



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___5_____ Action Plan: ___12_____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Increase the number of national and international learning
opportunities and test measures for students

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE

This plan is partially dependent on other plans for information (1-1 and 1-4). Plans are
underway to convene a committee to research additional national and international
opportunities over the summer. Work related to a world language program has begun.

88



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 6 Action Plan: 6.1 And 6.2

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner/Mandy Johnson

Action Plan Objective:
6.1 – To ensure new students and families are welcomed

 Implement a formal student induction program
 Create information packets
 Survey new students and their families

6.2 – To ensure new students’ academic needs are identified and met
 Implement a formal student induction program
 Provide resources for new students
 Survey new students and their families
 Develop a check list for new students

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

The formal student induction program that was developed by this Action Team included
information packets, surveys, resources, and checklists. The program was communicated
to all district secretaries, building administrators, and counselors in the Fall of 2005.

New student welcome folders and templates were created and distributed to each school
in August, at the beginning of the school year. The folders included all required district
forms for enrollment, a listing of building items to be included, a listing of optional items
for possible inclusion, as well as a listing of other suggestions for welcoming new
students and their families.

The Action Team created the new student survey as well as the parent survey. These
were sent out to all new students or parents of new students in October, January and April
of this school year. There was approximately a 30% return rate on all surveys sent out.
Individual school results and district averages were reported back to each building in
November, February and will be in May so that buildings can reflect on strengths as well
as areas of concern. District wide results will be communicated to all building
administrators in June.

89



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: __6______ Action Plan: ___3/4/5_____

Person Responsible: Carol Newton April 24, 2006

Action Plan Objective:
Strategy 6 – We will develop and implement plans to ensure students make successful
transitions into the District and from level to level, preschool to postsecondary.

Action Plan 3 – Implement a collaborative communication process among families, early
elementary staff, and District-administered preschool program staff to ensure successful
transitions into elementary school.
Action Plan 4 – Implement a collaborative communication process among families, early
elementary staff, and community-based preschool program staff to ensure successful
transitions into elementary school.
Action Plan 5 – Develop outreach materials to increase parental awareness and knowledge
of developmental milestones, pre-readiness skills and kindergarten expectations.

Action Plan Status: Completed X

Team: Chairs: Susan Bukove, Alicia Feist, Denise Parker
Dave Park Pat Rhodes Jean Ubbelohde Kristi Kozak
Peggy Brendel Jerri Wesley Linda Walters Kara Hutton
Suzy Renken Mary Bahney Kathie Grove Jen Hupka
Jodi Critser Peg Jaworski Andrea Kidd

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

The committee developed early childhood transition plans to be implemented by teachers,
principals/buildings, and the district. The plans for each are as follows:

Teacher Responsibilities:
January – May

 Kindergarten Roundup – use the parent meeting guidelines and talking points for
consistent district information and provide parents the readiness skills checklist and
kindergarten expectations sheet.

 Utilize the district Kindergarten Interest Inventory and place in child’s file.
 Participate in special education preschool transition meeting during March & April if

received a child from ECSE.

90



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: _6______ Action Plan: ____6____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner, Roberta Deremer, Lori Jasa

Action Plan Objective: Provide district orientation and support systems for fifth into
sixth grade students that ensure a successful transition to middle school.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway x Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

Roberta and Lori met on September 23rd to review the strategy and develop a timeline.
They met again on November 11th to prepare for a district counselor meeting which was
scheduled for November 15th. The presentation was postponed and rescheduled for
December 14th. At that time, Roberta and Lori highlighted aspects of the plan which will
involve the elementary and middle school counselors such as:

1.Coordination between elementary and middle school counselors-counselor meetings,
counselor transition forms
2.Middle School visits to the elementary school (booklets, video/multi-media
presentation, Q/A, middle school student representatives, etc.
3.May Orientation—groups, fifth grade teacher luncheon and shadowing, transition
packets for new students, lunch for students at the middle school

Roberta provided a brief overview of the transitional process with the elementary
principals at their December meeting.

Lori organized an ad hoc committee to review plan 6-6 Steps #2 and #4 regarding
an expanded Jump Start program. The committee met on 11-30-05 and developed
parameters involving the program. The committee met again on December 20th. On
December 7th, two committee members presented a basic outline of the Jump Start
program to the middle level administrators. Each building has a Jump Start resource
notebook and individuals from each school will work with their administrators to
schedule, publicize, and implement the summer Jump Start program in early
August.

91



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: __6___ Action Plan: __7______

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner, Lori Jasa, Bert Deremer

Action Plan Objective: Formalize a structure of communication between fifth and sixth
grade staff to address curriculum, instruction, and student profiles.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

1. Lori Jasa contacted Tracy Logan in June, 2005 and asked for clarifications on
various action plan steps.

2. Lori met with the middle level administrators on June 15, 2005 at Central Middle
School to review the implementation recommendations for 6-7.

3. Lori contacted Sharon Freeman, John Crawford and Judy Porter about various
ways to administer the surveys. (It was decided by the 6-15-05 administrators
that we could administer parts of the survey to get some baseline data.)

4. I sent an email to the middle level administrators outlining suggestions regarding
the surveys. I revised them slightly and included them as an attachment for the
administrators to use if they wanted to get some baseline data prior to the
implementation of the steps included in 6-7.

5. Lori sent a reminder email on Sept. 6, 2005 to remind middle level administrators
about possible upcoming considerations (video, jump start, fall transition
program, surveys).

6. Roberta and Lori met with other action plan designees, Dr. Porter, Dr. Bruckner,
and Dr. Newton to discuss progress to date and upcoming
communications/activities.

7. Lori and Roberta met on 9-23-05 to review 6-6, 6-7 and developed a timeline.
They met again on 11-11-05 to review plans to share with the counselors.

8. Roberta and Lori will meet with the KMS counselors to review fall transition
program on December 14, 2005.

9. Lori organized an ad hoc committee to review plan 6-6 Steps #2 and #4 regarding
an expanded Jump Start program. The committee met on 11-30-05 and developed
parameters involving the summer jump start program. The committee met again
on December 20th. During the interim, two committee members presented a basic
outline of the jump start program to the middle level administrators on 12-7-05.

10. Each building was given a Jump Start resource notebook. Individuals from each
Building will work with their administrators to implement the open Jump Start
program at each site in August.

92



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___6____ Action Plan: ___8____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: We will develop and implement plans to ensure students make
successful transitions into the District and from level to level, preschool to post-
secondary

Specific Result: Establish smaller learning communities for high school students.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

Professional Learning Communities have been established in each school based on site-
based decisions. Implementation began in Fall, 2005, with an altered schedule designed
to allow teachers to meet regularly to talk about what students need to learn, how to
measure if they learn, and what to do if they do not learn.

Advisement times have been expanded and revised to provide small learning
communities for each high school student.

Summer school classes provided additional opportunities for students.

93



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___6____ Action Plan: _____9___

Person Responsible: David Hemphill/Dr. Judy Porter

Action Plan Objective: To ensure that students and parent make a successful transition
for level to level. Plan will be focused on academics, social, and emotional transition.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

 A transition plan has been developed. Periodic reminders are sent to
administrators at each secondary school to remind them of processes and
procedures in the plan.

 Transition updates and discussions occur regularly in principal meetings.
 A transition form was developed to facilitate communications between buildings.

It has been initiated this year.
 A parent guide has been written and distributed to parents. This will continue to

be given to parents of new students.
 “Infinite Campus” will assist staff in knowing student status and information to

aide in transition.
 A high school transition process for students determined to be at risk continues to

be refined.

94



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 1

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Create communication channels between Millard Public
Schools staff and community agencies.

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway _______ Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

Goal 1: We will build stronger relationships with agencies we currently interact with
while striving to increase our interactions with those who are not currently working with
us.

Starting in August of 2004, and again this school year, the Millard Public School
counselor and school psychologist phone numbers as well as daily schedules were sent to
community counselors and mental health practitioners. This was done to create better
communication channels with these agencies. We will continue to update this information
annually.

We have expanded the Community Agency Fair which is held on Martin Luther King
Day. Last year we strived to have more community agency interactions. This year, we
will have a keynote presentation for all counselors, psychologists and agency
representatives and offer “break-out” sessions later in the morning. This is comparable to
last year’s format. Also, community agency representatives are always invited to attend
relevant workshops or in-services throughout the year.

A comprehensive community agency list has been created to increase communication and
interaction with Millard Public Schools. We update this list each semester. We have had
numerous requests from the community to be on this list. This has been beneficial, as we
have referred families to community counselors to address specific issues. We are able to
suggest professionals that specialize in certain areas of intervention. We are also able to

95



suggest certain agencies that accept different types of insurance or acceptable payment
methods.

We have developed a “networking list” that is student centered and can be found on the
district’s web-page under Pupil Services. The list includes:

1. Business/Project Paybac
2. Area Sports/Activities
3. Medical Agencies
4. Mental Health/Substance Abuse Agencies
5. Governmental Agencies
6. Legal Resources/Juvenile Assessment Center
7. Family Assistance
8. Faith Based Organizations

96



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 2

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Increase the use of neighborhood schools as centers to provide
information and support to families impacted by negative social issues.

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway ______ Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

New Committee Update: The new committee that has been charged with re-
evaluating Strategy #7 has innovative ways to get quality information to parents.
Information will be forthcoming. The main idea is an educational, interactive web-
site.

The drug prevention committee has met twice during the Fall of 2005 and once in the
spring to address this plan. A community forum was held in April 25th regarding current
trends in Mental Health. The presentation was given by Dr. Chris Kratochvil, M.D. from
the UNMC.

Detailed contact information is available to families that may be “at-risk” on the district’s
web-site. Resources are categorized and listed with phone numbers and addresses. All
principals, counselors and psychologists are aware of the list and will disseminate the
information as needed.

We are also planning to disseminate information to families in select grade levels
pertaining to ATOD use that includes strategies for prevention and intervention. At this
writing, brochures are being printed.

Parenting classes are offered each spring. Recent class sizes have increased.

97



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 3

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Improve the effectiveness of the K-12 drug abuse prevention

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway _______ Not Started _______

The NCLB Title IV Safe and Drug Free Grant was written this year to address Drug
Prevention and Youth Violence. Drug Education and Prevention Groups at each
interested elementary school will be funded by the grant.

Last year we initiated the sharing of a “framework” with our community called the 40
Developmental Assets. We continue to share the information this year. We have
presented to numerous organizations such as the Rotary Club, Kiwanis, Social Worker
Convention, etc. The “assets” are the building blocks that help created responsible caring,
educated students, and eventually adults. Research strongly indicates the more assets
students have, the better they do in school and life. Research also supports reduced
ATOD use when “assets” are increased.

Each student who receives an infraction for alcohol or drug use is offered an assessment
known as the Developmental Assets Profile. It is administered by a school social worker.
This requires parent consent. The “DAP” shows us a student’s areas of strengths and
areas that can be improved. Individualized strategies are then given. Finally, data from
the DAP is consistently showing areas of concern as a group. While individuals may
vary, there are clear indications of where school/community interventions may be
focused.

We have reviewed the Mid-America Council’s Intervention program. The alcohol and
drug counseling agency, NOVA Therapeutic Communities was added to the options a
parent can choose from to address a child’s alcohol/drug dependency. We continue to
look at other available options to parents.

The Drug Prevention committee is also working on information to send all eighth and
ninth grade parents regarding drug and alcohol usage. This student population is a
primary focus due to recent research completed by Dr. Carol Novince and the University

98



of Cincinnati. This flyer will give parents strategies and resources to keep their children
free from substance use and abuse.

Also, a community forum will be held in April of 2006 pertaining to Mental Health.
However, drug and alcohol use will be talked about because it is often involved with
those individuals who have mental health concerns.

99



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 4

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Expand school-wide programs for the prevention of student
harassment, bullying, and violence to include students, parents, community and staff.

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway _______ Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

The committee has recently looked at addressing curricular concerns with this action
plan. More information will be forthcoming.

We have analyzed the current building level data using bullying/violence indicators.
According to the data in the Pupil Service Report violence indicators dropped last year
for the first year time in a five year period. Monthly audits have shown a continual
decline.

During the 2004-2005 school-year we initiated the sharing of a “framework” with our
community called the 40 Developmental Assets. We also requested that each building
that receives NCLB Title IV (Safe & Drug Free Schools) Grant money address the assets.
Research strongly indicates the more assets students have, the better they do in school
and life. Research also supports reduced “violence’ and “bullying” behavior when
“assets” are increased. This information is being shared with community groups and
parents.

NCLB Title IV Grant funds were also used to promote BIST, a program that addresses
adverse behavior in a positive, systematic manner.

100



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 5

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Develop proactive, non-punitive, school-wide programs that
effectively promote positive student behavior through student recognition.

Action Plan Status: Completed ______ Underway XXXX Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

This action plan will be discussed on May 4th, 2006. More information
will be forthcoming. Concerns have been raised due to the volume of
students who are already “recognized” throughout the district, at Board
of Education meetings, and each individual school that already
promotes positive recognition.

At a district-wide counselor meeting ideas were discussed to promote
positive student recognition. We are moving toward a recognition program
that includes input from the school and community

101



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 6

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Identify student with suicidal tendencies and provide
immediate intervention strategies.

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway _______ Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

Plan #6

Identify students with suicidal tendencies and provide immediate intervention strategies.

Updated information includes the pending purchase of a middle school Signs of
Suicide Curriculum (SOS). Trends regarding the issue indicate students 10-14 years
of age are the fastest growing group of children who commit suicide.

We have also re-contacted national experts, Poland and Leibermann regarding
suicide to address updated concerns and to make sure we are on the right page.

Finally, working with other Metro Districts, Millard Public Schools facilitated new
communication channels to alert all schools (and appropriate personnel) of suicide
activity. This will place schools in the Metro area on an elevated alert status because
the phenomenon does not know school boundaries.

Last year, the school counselors, psychologists and nurses met to review our suicide
intervention strategies. As stated in prior communication, the process was updated and
continues to be reviewed with best practices. The updated process has allowed us to work
effectively with parents and refer them to mental health agencies for intervention when
needed.

102



Updated training pertaining to suicide as well as mental health has been completed. For
example, all counselors and school psychologists attended a meeting about students who
“self-harm.”

Millard Public Schools also works with other Metro schools regarding the phenomenon
of suicide. Information was also shared with the Omaha Community Partnership on how
to best address the matter.

103



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: 7 Action Plan: 7

In partnership with our community, we will develop and implement plans
to offset the social issues that negatively affect student behavior and
learning.

Person Responsible: Kraig Lofquist, Dr. Kirby Eltiste

Action Plan Objective: Educate parents and staff about various mental health issues,
including effects of various medications.

Action Plan Status: Completed XXX Underway ______ Not Started _______

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE: (What have you done and
what will you do in the future):

The school psychologists will be provided an in-service to all staff members during the
Spring of 2006. The psychologists have received training from physicians from the
UNMC regarding the subject matter. Trends, interventions, medications and best
practices were shared.

On April 25, 2006, a community forum was held regarding Mental Health incidence,
prevalence and how it ties to “comorbid” disorders such as substance abuse. The
presentation also addressed the latest brain research regarding diagnosis such as
ADD/ADHD, substance abuse, Depression and phobias.

104



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ____8____ Action Plan: ____2____

Person Responsible: Angelo Passarelli

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement alternative school-year options.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway XX Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

The calendar committee discussed the issues related to alternative school-year calendar
options. These options will be site-specific and based on educational recommendations.
The calendar committee did not recommend these options for all students.

The implementation committee that is planning for the alternative high school has
specific recommendations for alternative calendar options.

Willowdale’s attempt to implement a year-round calendar was not successful.

We will consider alternative calendar options through site planning and will encourage
selected sites to consider appropriate calendar options.

105



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___8____ Action Plan: ___3____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement alternative learning experiences to
motivate and educate idle school students.

Action Plan Status: Completed X Underway Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

Recommendations of last year’s study team have been implemented in all regular middle
schools and in the alternative middle school program now connected more closely with
Central Middle School. Representatives of Central Middle School are working closely
with and overseeing the alternative middle school program now. The collaboration has
been good for the program and for individual students.

106



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___8____ Action Plan: ___4____

Person Responsible: Martha Bruckner

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement alternative on-campus learning
experiences for high school students.

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway X Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

Recommendations for a new alternative campus have been developed and presented to
the superintendent.

Connections have been made between Millard Public Schools and other agencies to
provide new instructional opportunities.

A search for land for the school is continuing.

Materials have been collected concerning programs that could be implemented in
individual buildings. Each building continues to search for ways to engage and motivate
students who learn in non-traditional ways.

The OPS – initiated merger discussion slowed progress during the 05-06 school year.

107



Action Plan Progress Report

Strategy: ___8_____ Action Plan: ____6____

Person Responsible: Keith Lutz

Action Plan Objective: Develop and implement plans to create a small high school

Action Plan Status: Completed Underway XX Not Started

SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS TO DATE (What have you done and what
will you do in the future):

We are moving forward to purchase the property at 185th and Harrison at a cost that is
under the budget.

We have met with stakeholders to discuss overarching issues for this school.

We have met with organizations including UNO, Metro Community College, ITT and
Vaderott to discuss collaboration.

It appears that Metro may have some money for capital expenditures and is interested in
exploring an investment in our new high school.

All of the partners have expressed interest in an ongoing relationship in regard to this
alternative high school.

108


	Board Meeting May 1, 2006
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Minutes April 17, 2006
	Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. Approval of Rule 6700.6 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Extracurricular School Sponsored Clubs and Activities and Interscholastic Athletics and Activities (Travel and Trips)
	H.2. Approval of Use of Facilities Rate Schedule
	H.3. Award Construction Bids for Ackerman Elementary
	H.4. Administrator for Hire
	H.5. Personnel Actions:  Resignations, Leave of Absence, and Hires
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Final Enrollment Projections
	I.3. Strategic Planning 
	Status Schedule
	!.1
	1.2
	2.1
	2.2
	2.3
	3.1
	3.2
	3.4
	3.5
	3.6
	4.1
	5.5.1
	5.5.2
	5.5.3
	5.4
	5.5
	5.6
	5.7
	5.8
	5.9
	5.10
	5.11
	5.12
	6.6.1 and 6.6.2
	6.3/4/5
	6.6
	6.7
	6.8
	6.9
	7.1
	7.2
	7.3
	7.4
	7.5
	7.6
	7.7
	8.2
	8.3
	8.4
	8.6



